UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON

In the matter of
File No. 932 3019
THE ADM NI STRATI VE COMPANY,
a Texas Corporation,

AGREEMENT CONTAI NI NG
CONSENT CORDER TO
CEASE AND DESI ST
REGARDI NG PRE- PAI D
LEGAL SERVI CES, | NC.

M CHAEL P. MCI NTYRE, i ndividually
and as an officer and director of
The Adm ni strative Conpany, and

PRE- PAI D LEGAL SERVI CES, | NC.,
an Okl ahoma Cor porati on.

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

The Federal Trade Commi ssion having initiated an
i nvestigation of certain acts and practices of Pre-Paid Legal
Services, Inc. ("Pre-Paid"), a corporation, (hereinafter
sonetinmes referred to as proposed respondent), and it now
appearing that proposed respondent is willing to enter into an
agreenent containing an Order to cease and desist fromthe use of
the acts and practices being investigated,

| T 1S HEREBY AGREED by and between Pre-Paid Legal Services,
Inc., by its duly authorized officer and its attorney, and
counsel for the Federal Trade Conmi ssion that:

1. Proposed respondent Pre-Paid Legal Services, Inc., is
an Gkl ahoma corporation, with its office and principal place of
busi ness at 321 E. Main Street, Ada, Cklahoma 74820.

2. Proposed respondent admts all the jurisdictional facts
set forth in the draft conplaint here attached.

3. Proposed respondent wai ves:

a. Any further procedural steps;
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b. The requirenment that the Conm ssion's decision
contain a statenment of findings of fact and concl usions
of | aw,

c. Al rights to seek judicial review or otherwise to
chal | enge or contest the validity of the Order entered
pursuant to this agreenment; and

d. Any claimunder the Equal Access to Justice Act.

4. This agreenent shall not becone part of the public
record of the proceeding unless and until it is accepted by the
Commission. |If this agreenent is accepted by the Comm ssion, it,

together with the draft conplaint contenplated thereby, will be
pl aced on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days and
information in respect thereto publicly rel eased. The Conmi ssion
thereafter may either withdraw its acceptance of this agreenent
and so notify the proposed respondent, in which event it wll
take such action as it nay consider appropriate, or issue and
serve its conmplaint (in such formas the circunstances may
require) and decision, in disposition of the proceeding.

5. This agreenent is for settlenent purposes only and does
not constitute an adm ssion by proposed respondent of facts,
ot her than jurisdictional facts, or of violations of |aw as
alleged in the draft conplaint here attached.

6. Thi s agreenent contenplates that, if it is accepted by
the Conm ssion, and if such acceptance is not subsequently
wi t hdrawn by the Conm ssion pursuant to the provisions of Section
2.34 of the Conmi ssion's Rules, the Conm ssion may, w thout
further notice to proposed respondent: (1) issue its conplaint
corresponding in formand substance with the draft conplaint here
attached and its decision containing the following Order to cease
and desist in disposition of the proceeding; and (2) nake
information public in respect thereto. Wen so entered, the
Order to cease and desist shall have the sanme force and effect
and may be altered, nodified, or set aside in the same manner and
within the sane tinme provided by statute for other orders. The
Order shall becone final upon service. Delivery by the U S
Postal Service of the conplaint and decision containing the
agreed-to Order to proposed respondent's address as stated in
this agreenent shall constitute service. Proposed respondent
wai ves any rights it may have to any other manner of service.
The conpl aint may be used in construing the terns of the Order,
and no agreenent, understanding, representation or interpretation
not contained in the Order or the agreenent nay be used to vary
or contradict the ternms of the Order.
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7. Proposed respondent has read the proposed conpl ai nt and
Order contenpl ated hereby. Proposed respondent understands that
once the Order has been issued, it will be required to file one
or nore conpliance reports showing that it has fully conplied
with the Order. Proposed respondent further understands that it
may be liable for civil penalties in the anount provided by | aw
for each violation of the Order after it becones final

DEFI NI T1 ONS

For purposes of this Oder:

a. "Living trust” means a trust into which an individual
can place all of his or her assets during his or her
lifetime and, by transferring ownership of the assets
to the name of the trust, thereby renpve the assets
fromthe individual's estate.

b. "Probate" is the |legal process that validates a wll,
the |l egal docunent that contains instructions to the
court on how assets and liabilities are to be divided
and distributed at death.

ORDER
l.

| T 1S ORDERED t hat respondent, Pre-Paid Legal Services,
Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and its
of ficers, and respondent’'s agents, representatives and enpl oyees,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or
ot her device, including through any individual or entity with
whom or whi ch respondent has contracted to provide pre-paid |egal
services, in connection with the advertising, pronoting, offering
for sale, or sale of living trusts, do forthwith cease and desi st
fromm srepresenting, in any manner, directly or by inplication,
orally or in witing, that:

A The use of a living trust avoids all probate and
adm ni strative costs.

B. At death, a living trust allows assets to be
distributed i Mmedi ately or al nost immediately.

C. A living trust cannot be chal |l enged.

D. Living trusts are prepared by | ocal attorneys.
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A living trust protects agai nst catastrophi c nedical
costs.

A living trust is the appropriate estate planning
device for every consuner.

There are no disadvantages to a living trust.
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| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat respondent Pre-Paid Legal
Services, Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and
its officers, and respondent’'s agents, representatives and
enpl oyees, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary,
di vision, or other device, including through any individual or
entity with whom or which respondent has contracted to provide
pre-paid | egal services, in connection with the offering for sale
or sale of living trusts, do forthwith cease and desist from
failing to disclose, clearly and conspicuously, in witing, and
prior to the consummation of the sale, the follow ng informtion:

A Living trusts may be chall enged on simlar grounds as
wlls.
B. Living trusts may not be appropriate in all instances,

and all estate planning options should be exam ned
bef ore determ ning which estate plan best suits a
particul ar individual's needs and w shes.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat respondent Pre-Paid Legal
Services, Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and
its officers, and respondent’'s agents, representatives and
enpl oyees, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary,
di vision, or other device, including through any individual or
entity with whom or which respondent has contracted to provide
pre-paid | egal services, in connection with the offering for sale
or sale of living trusts, do forthwith cease and desist from
failing to disclose, clearly and conspicuously, in witing, and
prior to the consummati on of the sale, the follow ng information,
if true:

A The availability of informal probate under this state's
statutes allows mniml or no contact with the courts
and reduces the tine required to probate a will.

B. The transfer of an individual's assets into the living
trust is not included in the price of creating the
[iving trust.

C. It is the sole responsibility of the purchaser of the
living trust to transfer assets into the trust.

D. Creditors have a longer period of tine to file a claim
against a living trust than against a probated estate.

5 of 9



| V.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat respondent Pre-Paid Legal
Services, Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and
its officers, and respondent’'s agents, representatives and
enpl oyees, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary,
di vision, or other device, in connection with the adverti sing,
pronoting, offering for sale, or sale of living trusts by any
i ndi vidual or entity with whom or which respondent has contracted
to provide pre-paid | egal services, do forthwith cease and desi st
fromfailing to take reasonable steps sufficient to determ ne,
commencing with the beginning of such a contractual relationship
and continuing throughout the rel ationship, whether the pronotion
or sale involves any acts or practices prohibited by Paragraphs
I, Il and Ill of this Order. Such steps shall include, but are
not limted to, evaluating, on a basis independent of the
i ndi vidual or entity with whom or which respondent has contracted
to provide pre-paid | egal services, the terns or conditions of
sal e, the adequacy of any disclosures, the representati ons nmade
and the truthful ness of these representations (for the purposes
herei n, evaluating may, but need not, include review ng
adverti senents, sales scripts and sales manuals, interview ng
of ficers and enpl oyees, ascertaining the nunber and nature of
consuner conplaints and blind testing of oral representations).

V.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat respondent Pre-Paid and its
successors and assigns shall, in accordance with the provisions
of this Part, offer a refund in the anount of one hundred sixty-
five dollars ($165.00) to every purchaser of a living trust,
except for (1) those purchasers residing in states with which
Pre-Pai d has previously settled, and (2) all other purchasers who
have previously received refunds fromeither Pre-Paid or the
Ameri can Association for Senior Citizens ("AASC').

A Wthin thirty (30) days of the date that this Order
becomes final, respondent shall conpile and submit to the
Commi ssion a current mailing |ist containing the nanes and | ast
known addresses of all AASC nenbers for whomliving trusts were
prepared by Pre-Paid and who reside in states with which Pre-Paid
has not previously settled. Respondent shall also conpile and
submt to the Conmission a list of all AASC nenbers to whom
respondent has paid refunds, indicating the anount of each refund
and the date the refund was issued. |In conpiling these lists,
respondent shall search all relevant records in the possession,
custody, or control of the respondent, including but not Iimted
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to its unincorporated divisions, joint ventures, partnerships,
operations under other nanes, affiliates, and all directors,

of ficers, partners, enployees, agents, consultants, franchi sees,
and any ot her person or entity, including independent
contractors, working for or on behalf of any of the foregoing.

B. The Commi ssion shall conpile and maintain a |ist of
consuners potentially eligible to receive refunds based on the
i nformati on respondent is required to produce pursuant to V. A,
above, and suppl enmented by such further relevant information in
t he Comm ssion's possession or that cones to the Conm ssion's
attention.

C. The Conmmi ssion or its designated agent shall nmail a
notification letter substantially in the formset out in Appendi x
1 to all persons the Commi ssion has reason to believe are
eligible consuners, to advise each of: (a) the settlenment with
Pre-Paid, and (b) the consuner's right to receive a refund.

D. The Conmi ssion shall enclose with each notification
| etter described in V.C, above, a claimformsubstantially in the
formset out in Appendix 2. Refund eligibility shall be based on
subm ssion of such form which has been signed by either the AASC
menber or the beneficiary, next-of-kin or other representative of
the menber, if the nenber is deceased.

E. Any potentially eligible consuner who does not submt a
conpl eted and executed claimformin response to the Conm ssion's
notification letter by the date specified in the notification
letter shall not be eligible to participate in the distribution;
provi ded, that the Commission may in its discretion accept and
process an untinely response to the notification letter.

F. The funds from any returned checks, and checks not
cashed within 60 days after the distribution date, shall be
redeposited into the redress fund for possible redistribution.

A\

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat the consuner redress fund shal
be established, adm nistered, distributed and term nated under
the direction and control of the Comm ssion and/or its designated
agent. Respondent shall be notified, upon request, as to how the
consuner refunds are distributed, but shall have no right to
contest the manner of distribution chosen by the Conm ssion.
Wthin 30 days of conpleting the distribution of refunds pursuant
to Part V of this Order, the Comm ssion or its designated staff
will provide witten notification to the escrow agent specified
in the Escrow Agreenent attached as Appendix 3 to return to the
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Conmi ssion for transmttal to Pre-Paid any funds remaining in the
escrow account that were not paid to consuners or to cover

adm ni strative costs of the escrow account. Nothing in this
provi sion shall be construed to limt Pre-Paid s obligation under
Parts V and VI of this Oder to provide consuner refunds.
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VII.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of three (3) years
fromthe date of issuance of this Order, respondent, and its
successors and assigns, shall maintain and upon request nmake
avai lable to a representative of the Federal Trade Conm ssion for
i nspection and copying all docunents relating to the adverti sing,
pronmoting, offering for sale, or sale of living trusts that are
devel oped, witten, reviewed, authorized, or used by respondent,
its successors and assigns, its officers, and its agents,
representatives and enpl oyees, directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, or by any
i ndi vidual or entity with whomor which respondent has contracted
to provide pre-paid | egal services.

VI,

| T I'S FURTHER OCRDERED t hat respondent shall notify the
Federal Trade Conmi ssion, through its Denver Regional Ofice
unl ess otherwi se directed, at least thirty (30) days prior to any
proposed change in the respondent, such as dissolution,
assignnment, or sale resulting in the energence of a successor
corporation, the creation or dissolution of new corporations,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the respondent, the planned filing
of a bankruptcy petition, or any other corporate change that may
af fect conpliance obligations arising out of this Oder.

| X.
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat respondent shall:

A Wthin thirty (30) days of service of this Oder upon
it, provide a copy of this Order to each of
respondent’'s current principals, officers, directors
and managers and to all personnel, agents and
representatives who are or have been participating or
engagi ng in any manner in respondent's sales activities
relating to living trusts.

B. For a period of three (3) years fromthe date of
i ssuance of this Order, provide a copy of this Order to
each of respondent's principals, officers, directors
and managers, and to all personnel, agents and
representatives who are participating or engaging in
any manner in respondent's sales activities relating to
living trusts within three (3) days after the person
assumes his or her position.

X.
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| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that this Oder will term nate twenty
years fromthe date of its issuance, or twenty years fromthe
nost recent date that the United States or the Federal Trade
Conmi ssion files a conplaint (with or without an acconpanyi ng
consent decree) in federal court alleging any violation of the
Order, whichever cones |ater; provided, however, that the filing
of such a conplaint will not affect the duration of:

A Any paragraph in this Oder that term nates in | ess
than twenty years;

B. This Order's application to any respondent that is not
named as a defendant in such conplaint; and

C. This Oder if such conplaint is filed after the O der
has term nated pursuant to this paragraph.

Provided further, that if such conplaint is dismssed or a
federal court rules that the respondent did not violate any
provi sion of the Order, and the dism ssal or ruling is either not
appeal ed or upheld on appeal, then the Order will term nate
according to this paragraph as though the conpl aint was never
filed, except that the Order will not term nate between the date
such conplaint is filed and the later of the deadline for
appeal i ng such dism ssal or ruling and the date such dism ssal or
ruling is upheld on appeal.

Xl .

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat respondent shall, within sixty
(60) days of service of this Order upon it, and at such other
times as the Federal Trade Comm ssion nmay require, file with the
Commi ssion a report, in witing, setting forth in detail the
manner and formin which it has conplied with this Order.

Signed this day of , 1996.

Pre-Pai d Legal Services, Inc.,
a corporation

By:

'321 E__Main Street
Ada, Ckl ahoma 74820
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APPROVED:

Mar gar et Fei nstein, Esq.
Di ckstein, Shapiro &
Morin, L.L.P
Attorney for Pre-Paid Legal
Services, Inc.

El i zabeth M Pal nqui st
Counsel for the
Federal Trade Conm ssion

Claude C. WIid Il
Director
Denver Regional Ofice

[ Appendi ces 1-3 attached to paper copies, but not available in

el ectronic form]
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UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COW SSI ON

In the Matter of

THE ADM NI STRATI VE COMVPANY,
a Texas Corporation,

M CHAEL P. MCI NTYRE, i ndividually
and as an officer and director of
The Adm ni strative Conpany, and

DOCKET NO.

PRE- PAI D LEGAL SERVI CES, | NC.
an Okl ahoma Cor porati on.

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

COVPLAI NT

The Federal Trade Commi ssion, having reason to believe that
The Adm ni strative Conpany, a corporation, Mchael P. MliIntyre,
individually and as an officer and director of The Adm nistrative
Conpany, and Pre-Paid Legal Services, Inc. ("Pre-Paid"), a
corporation (collectively, "respondents"”), have violated the
provi sions of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, as
anmended, 15 U. S.C. 8 45, and it appearing to the Conm ssion that
a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, alleges:

PARAGRAPH ONE: Respondent M chael P. Mclntyre's current
address is 4328 Hol |l ow Cak, Dallas, Texas 75287.

Respondent The Adm ni strative Conpany has ceased doi ng

business. Its address is the sane as that of Mchael P
Ml ntyre.
Respondent Pre-Paid Legal Services, Inc., is an Ckl ahoma

corporation, wth its principal office or place of business at
321 E. Main Street, Ada, Cklahoma 74820.

PARAGRAPH TWO: Respondents, at all tinmes relevant to this
conpl ai nt, have advertised, pronoted, offered for sale, and sold
living trusts to consuners. A living trust is a trust into which
an individual can place all of his or her assets during his or
her lifetime and, by transferring ownership of the assets to the
name of the trust, thereby renove the assets fromthe
i ndividual's estate.



PARAGRAPH THREE: The acts and practices of respondents
alleged in this conplaint have been in or affecting conmerce, as
"commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade
Conmmi ssi on Act.

PARAGRAPH FOUR: I n the course of marketing their products
to the public, respondents, directly or through comr ssioned
sal es agents, have caused to be dissem nated sales literature
concerning living trusts, including, but not necessarily limted
to, the attached Exhibits 1 and 2. This literature contains the
foll owi ng statenents:

(a) It is your legal right as a UNI TED STATES Tax Payer to
establish a Living Trust. By establishing a Living
Trust, at your death your estate avoi ds PROBATI NG YOUR
WLL which can COST SEVERAL THOUSANDS of dollars in
| egal and executor fees and TAKE SEVERAL YEARS bef ore
being transferred to your famly and | oved ones. YQU
RETAI N FULL CONTROL OF ALL ASSETS!

YOU COULD SAVE THOUSANDS
OF HARD EARNED DOLLARS!

Exh. 1.

(b) A LIVING TRUST elimnates ALL PROBATE FEES and COST. .
. Wth a LIVING TRUST, your famly will not have to
go through probate, and can avoid payi hg expensive
probate fees and costs. Exh. 2, p. 18.

(c) A LIVING TRUST allows a quick DI STRIBUTION to your
heirs. Assets in probate court are often frozen two
years or nore, even with a WLL. A LIVING TRUST al | ows
t hese sane assets to be distributed within days to your
| oved ones, since a LIVING TRUST avoi ds Probate Court.
Exh. 2, p. 17.

(d) Total assets [pass through a] living trust [to] spouse
or heirs [in] 1-3 days. Exh. 2, p. 24.

(e) A LIVING TRUST prevents a WLL CONTEST. . . . Through a
LI VI NG TRUST your wi shes will be carried out w thout
interference. Exh. 2, p. 17.

(f) Menbership entitles you to:
1. FREE LEGAL SERVI CES FOR PREPARATI ON OF A REVOCABLE
LI VING TRUST BY A QUALIFI ED ATTORNEY I N YOUR STATE
AND A FREE "POUR-OVER' WLL. Exh. 2, p. 8.




(g) AN A-B LIVING TRUST protects agai nst catastrophic
MEDI CAL COSTS. . . . Wth an A-B LIVING TRUST, if you

become seriously ill, your trustee can nmake gifts of
your property to your heirs, and three years



(h)

thereafter, can seek governnent benefits for your care,
so that the bul k of your estate will go to your heirs.
Exh. 2, p. 19.

| s There Anything Bad About a Living Trust? No. There
is nothing bad about a Living Trust. Exh. 2, p. 20.

PARACGRAPH FI VE: Through the use of the statenents contained
inthe sales literature referred to in PARAGRAPH FOUR, i ncl udi ng,

but not

necessarily limted to, the sales literature attached as

Exhibits 1 and 2, respondents have represented, directly or by
i mplication, that:

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)

()

(9)

The use of a living trust avoids all probate and
adm ni strative costs.

At death, a living trust allows assets to be
di stributed i medi ately or al nost inmmediately.

A living trust cannot be chal | enged.
Living trusts are prepared by |ocal attorneys.

A living trust protects agai nst catastrophi c nedical
costs.

Aliving trust is the appropriate estate planning
device for every consuner

There are no di sadvantages to a living trust.

PARAGRAPH S| X: In truth and in fact:

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

A living trust does not always avoid probate and
adm ni strative costs.

The use of a living trust does not necessarily result
in imediate distribution of assets since creditors may
file clainms against the trust instrunent.

A living trust is not inmune from chall enge.

Most living trusts prepared for AASC nenbers were not
prepared by |ocal attorneys. Instead, of the 3,064
living trusts prepared for AASC nenbers in 43 states,
approximately 3,000 were prepared by an Arizona
attorney licensed to practice law solely in Arizona and
New Yor K.



(e) A living trust does not protect against catastrophic
nmedi cal costs.

(f) Aliving trust is not appropriate for everyone. The
determi nation of whether a living trust is appropriate
for a particular consuner requires an exam nation of
the assets that conpose the consuner's estate, the
potential tax consequences of the estate plan, and the
obj ectives of the consuner.

(g) There are disadvantages to a living trust. For
exanple, while probate | aw i nposes a statutory deadline
beyond which creditors can no longer file clains
against a will, in sone states, there is no | aw
[imting the tinme that creditors may file clains
agai nst a trust instrunent.

Therefore, the representations set forth in PARAGRAPH FI VE wer e,
and are, false and m sl eadi ng.

PARAGRAPH SEVEN:. Through the use of the statenents
contained in the sales literature referred to i n PARAGRAPH FOUR
i ncluding, but not necessarily limted to, the sales literature
attached as Exhibits 1 and 2, respondents have represented,
directly or by inplication, that at the tinme they nade the
representations set forth in PARAGRAPH FI VE, respondents
possessed and relied upon a reasonabl e basis that substantiated
such representations.

PARAGRAPH EIGHT: In truth and in fact, at the tinme they
made the representations set forth in PARAGRAPH FI VE, respondents
di d not possess and rely upon a reasonabl e basis that
substanti ated such representations. Therefore, the
representation set forth in PARAGRAPH SEVEN was, and is, false
and m sl eadi ng.

PARAGRAPH NINE: In their advertising, pronoting, offering
for sale, and sale of living trusts, respondents have failed to
di scl ose that the transfer of an individual's assets into the
l[iving trust was not included in the price paid for creating the
l[iving trust and that it would be the responsibility of the
i ndi vi dual purchaser to transfer assets into the trust, once
created, or to arrange for another individual or entity to do so.
This fact would be material to consuners in deciding whether to
purchase a living trust and fromwhomto purchase a living trust.
The failure to disclose this fact was, and is, a deceptive act or
practice.



PARAGRAPH TEN: The acts and practices of respondents as
alleged in this conplaint constitute unfair or deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a)
of the Federal Trade Conm ssion Act.



THEREFORE, the Federal Trade Commission, on this _ day
of , issues this conplaint against said respondents.

By the Commi ssion.

SEAL
Donald S. dark
Secretary

[Exhibits 1 and 2 attached to paper copies of conplaint, but not
avai lable in electronic fornj



Anal ysi s of Proposed Consent Order to Aid Public Comrent

The Federal Trade Conm ssion has agreed to accept, subject
to final approval, a proposed consent order settling charges that
Pre-Paid Legal Services, Inc., violated Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Conmm ssion Act.

The proposed consent order has been placed on the public
record for sixty (60) days for reception of comrents by
interested persons. Comments received during this period wll
becone part of the public record. After sixty (60) days, the
Comm ssion will again review the agreenent and the coments
received and will decide whether it should wthdraw fromthe
agreenent or nmake final the agreenent's proposed order.

This matter concerns the sale of living trusts to senior
citizens through nenbership in the American Association for
Senior Citizens ("AASC'). The respondent covered by the proposed
order is Pre-Paid Legal Services, Inc., the conpany responsible
for furnishing to and preparing the living trusts for AASC.

The conpl aint alleges that the respondent violated Section 5
of the Federal Trade Conmm ssion Act by maki ng numerous
m srepresentati ons about the advantages of living trusts over
other forns of estate planning. Specifically, the conpl aint
al l eges that respondent has m srepresented that (1) the use of a
living trust avoids all adm nistrative costs; (2) at death, a
living trust ensures that assets are distributed i mediately or
al nost imediately; (3) a living trust cannot be chal |l enged,;
(4) living trusts are prepared by |local attorneys; (5) a living
trust protects against catastrophic nedical costs; (6) a living
trust is the appropriate estate planning device for every
consuner; and (7) there are no di sadvantages to a living trust.

The proposed consent order contains provisions which are
designed to renedy the alleged violations and to prevent the
respondent fromengaging in simlar acts and practices in the
future. The proposed order would prohibit the respondent from
maki ng the m srepresentations alleged in the conplaint and set
forth above. Additionally, the order would require the
respondent to disclose to prospective purchasers that |iving
trusts may be challenged on simlar grounds as wills and that
they may not be appropriate in all instances.

Under the order, the respondent also would be required to
provide four affirmative disclosures in situations where the
statenents would be true. 1) Sone states have created a
mechani smfor "informal probate"” of an estate if the estate neets
certain criteria, which significantly reduces the tine invol ved
in probate. This disclosure would be required in states where
informal probate is available. 2) [If the transfer of an



i ndividual's assets into the living trust is not included in the
price of creating the living trust, that fact nust be discl osed.



3) If it is the sole responsibility of the purchaser of the
l[iving trust to transfer assets into the trust, that fact nust be
di sclosed. 4) In sone states, but not in others, creditors have
a longer period of tinme to file clains against a |living trust

t han agai nst a probated estate. This fact would have to be

di scl osed in such states.

The proposed order would require the respondent to
di stribute the proposed order to its officers, agents, and al
personnel who participate in any way with respondent’'s sal es
activities relating to living trusts. Additionally, the order
woul d require the respondent to notify the Conm ssion of any
changes in its corporate structure and to retain for three years
all materials that it relies upon in making representations
covered by the order. Finally, the respondent is required to
file one or nore conpliance reports detailing its conpliance with
t he order.

The proposed order also requires the respondent to offer
partial refunds to any AASC nenber who has not previously
received a refund fromeither the respondent or AASC.

The purpose of this analysis is to facilitate public coment
on the proposed order, and it is not intended to constitute an
official interpretation of the agreenent and proposed order, nor
to nodify in any way their terns. The proposed consent order has
been entered into for settlenment purposes only and does not
constitute an admi ssion by the respondent that the | aw has been
violated as alleged in the conplaint.



